Ny -4
Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(2)12/15-16

Ref : CB2/H/5/14
House Committee of the Legislative Council

Minutes of the 32nd meeting
held in Conference Room 1 of the Legislative Council Complex
at 2:30 pm on Friday, 9 October 2015

Members present:

Hon Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Hon Albert HO Chun-yan

Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon CHAN Kam-lam, SBS, JP

Hon LEUNG Yiu-chung

Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP

Hon TAM Yiu-chung, GBS, JP

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, GBS, JP
Hon Tommy CHEUNG Yu-yan, GBS, JP
Hon Frederick FUNG Kin-kee, SBS, JP
Hon Vincent FANG Kang, SBS, JP

Hon WONG Kwok-hing, BBS, MH

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP, PhD, RN
Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP

Hon WONG Ting-kwong, SBS, JP

Hon Cyd HO Sau-lan, JP

Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, JP

Dr Hon LAM Tai-fai, SBS, JP

Hon CHAN Hak-kan, JP

Hon CHAN Kin-por, BBS, JP

Dr Hon Priscilla LEUNG Mei-fun, SBS, JP
Hon CHEUNG Kwok-che

Hon WONG Kwok-kin, SBS

Hon IP Kwok-him, GBS, JP

Hon Mrs Regina IP LAU Suk-yee, GBS, JP
Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP

Hon Alan LEONG Kah-kit, SC

Hon LEUNG Kwok-hung

Hon Albert CHAN Wai-yip



Hon WONG Yuk-man

Hon Claudia MO

Hon Michael TIEN Puk-sun, BBS, JP
Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP
Hon NG Leung-sing, SBS, JP

Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS

Hon WU Chi-wai, MH

Hon YU Si-wing, BBS

Hon Gary FAN Kwok-wai

Hon MA Fung-kwok, SBS, JP

Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP

Hon CHAN Chi-chuen

Hon CHAN Han-pan, JP

Dr Hon Kenneth CHAN Ka-lok

Hon CHAN Yuen-han, SBS, JP

Hon LEUNG Che-cheung, BBS, MH, JP
Hon Kenneth LEUNG

Hon Alice MAK Mei-kuen, BBS, JP
Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki

Hon KWOK Wai-keung

Hon Dennis KWOK

Hon Christopher CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
Hon SIN Chung-kai, SBS, JP

Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan

Hon IP Kin-yuen

Dr Hon Elizabeth QUAT, JP

Hon POON Siu-ping, BBS, MH

Hon TANG Ka-piu, JP

Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, JP

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP
Hon CHUNG Kwok-pan

Hon Christopher CHUNG Shu-kun, BBS, MH, JP
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

Members absent:

Hon LEE Cheuk-yan

Dr Hon LAU Wong-fat, GBM, GBS, JP
Dr Hon LEUNG Ka-lau

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, JP

Dr Hon Fernando CHEUNG Chiu-hung
Hon Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, SBS, JP



Action

Clerk in attendance :

Miss Flora TAI

Staff in attendance :

Mr Kenneth CHEN, SBS
Ms Connie FUNG
Miss Odelia LEUNG
Ms Anita SIT

Ms Dora WA

Mr Matthew LOO
Mr Timothy TSO
Mr Stephen LAM
Mr Kelvin LEE

Ms Amy YU

Ms Hallie CHAN
Ms Alice LEUNG
Miss Rachel DAI
Miss Carrie WONG
Ms Vanessa CHENG
Ms Wendy KAN
Miss Winnie LO

Mr YICK Wing-kin
Miss Evelyn LEE
Miss Karen LAI

Ms Jasmine TAM
Mr Richard WONG
Ms Theresa CHEUNG
Ms Anna CHEUNG
Mr Arthur KAN

Clerk to the House Committee

Secretary General

Legal Adviser

Deputy Secretary General
Assistant Secretary General 1
Assistant Secretary General 3
Assistant Secretary General 4
Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 1
Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 2
Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 3
Principal Council Secretary 1
Head (Public Information)
Chief Council Secretary (2)6
Assistant Legal Adviser 2
Assistant Legal Adviser 4
Assistant Legal Adviser 5
Assistant Legal Adviser 6
Assistant Legal Adviser 7
Assistant Legal Adviser 8
Assistant Legal Adviser 10
Senior Council Secretary (2)6
Senior Council Secretary (2)8
Council Secretary (2)6

Senior Legislative Assistant (2)2
Senior Legislative Assistant (2)3
Legislative Assistant (2)7

. Confirmation of minutes/verbatim transcript of meetings

(@) Minutes of the 31st meeting held on 3 July 2015

(LC Paper No. CB(2)2187/14-15)

(b) Verbatim transcript of the special

meeting held on

1 September 2015

(LC Paper No. CB(2)2185/14-15)

The above two sets of minutes/verbatim transcript of meetings

were confirmed.



Action

Matters arising

Report by the Chairman on his meeting with the Chief Secretary for
Administration

2. The Chairman said that there was nothing special to report.

Business arising from previous Council meetings

Legal Service Division reports on bills referred to the House
Committee in accordance with Rule 54(4)

(@) Chinese Permanent Cemeteries (Amendment) Bill 2015
(LC Paper No. LS87/14-15)

3. At the invitation of the Chairman, Legal Adviser ("LA") briefed
Members on the Legal Service Division ("LSD") report on the Bill.

4. Ms Cyd HO considered it necessary to form a Bills Committee to
study the Bill in detail. Members agreed. Ms Cyd HO, Dr Kenneth
CHAN and Dr Helena WONG agreed to join the Bills Committee.

(b)  Supplementary Appropriation (2014-2015) Bill
(LC Paper No. LS88/14-15)

5. At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the LSD
report on the Bill.

6. Members considered it not necessary to form a Bills Committee to
study the Bill and did not raise objection to the resumption of the Second
Reading debate on the Bill.

(c) Kai Tak Cruise Terminal Bill
(LC Paper No. LS85/14-15)

7. At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the LSD
report on the BiIll.

8. Ms Cyd HO considered it necessary to form a Bills Committee to
study the Bill in detail. Members agreed. The following Members
agreed to join the Bills Committee: Mr James TO, Mr CHAN Kam-lam,
Ms Cyd HO, Mr WONG Kwok-kin, Mr YIU Si-wing, Mr SIN Chung-kai
and Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok.



Action

V.

-5-

(d) Promotion of Recycling and Proper Disposal (Product
Container) (Amendment) Bill 2015
(LC Paper No. LS86/14-15)

9. At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the LSD
report on the Bill.

10. Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok considered it necessary to form a Bills
Committee to study the Bill in detail. Members agreed. The
following Members agreed to join the Bills Committee: Mr Tommy
CHEUNG, Mr Vincent FANG, Ms Cyd HO, Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Dr
Kenneth CHAN, Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok and Mr Tony TSE.

Legal Service Division report on subsidiary legislation gazetted
between 3 July and 25 September 2015
(LC Paper No. LS83/14-15)

11. At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the LSD
report on 51 items of subsidiary legislation which included (a) 25 items of
subsidiary legislation (i.e. L.N. 130 to L.N. 154) gazetted on 3 July 2015
and tabled in the Council on 8 July 2015; and (b) 26 items of subsidiary
legislation (i.e. L.N. 155 to L.N. 169 and L.N. 172 to L.N. 182) gazetted
between 17 July and 25 September 2015, of which 20 items would be
tabled in the Council on 14 October 2015 and the remaining six items
were not required to be tabled.

12. Regarding the Live Television Link (Witnesses outside Hong Kong)
Rules (L.N. 145) and the Rules of the High Court (Amendment) (No. 2)
Rules 2015 (L.N. 146), Mr Albert HO considered it necessary to form a
subcommittee to study the two items of subsidiary legislation in detail.
Members agreed. Mr Albert HO and Mr Dennis KWOK agreed to join
the proposed subcommittee.

13.  As regards the six items of subsidiary legislation (L.N. 147 to L.N.
152) relating to the handling of suitors' funds in various courts and
tribunals, Mr_Dennis KWOK considered it necessary to form a
subcommittee to study them in detail. Members agreed. Mr Albert HO,
Ms Cyd HO and Mr Dennis KWOK agreed to join the subcommittee.

14.  Mr SIN Chung-kai considered it necessary to form a subcommittee
to study the six items of subsidiary legislation (L.N. 155 to L.N. 160)
relating to the implementation of the Competition Ordinance (Cap. 619)
in detail. Members agreed. The Chairman, Mr Dennis KWOK and Mr
SIN Chung-kai agreed to join the subcommittee.




Action

-6-

15. In respect of the five commencement notices relating to the
implementation of the requirements for solicitors to account to clients for
interest earned on money deposited with them under the Solicitors'
Accounts Rules (Cap. 159F) (L.N. 161 to L.N. 165), Mr Dennis KWOK
considered it necessary to form a subcommittee to study them in detail.
Members agreed. Mr Dennis KWOK agreed to join the proposed
subcommittee.

16.  Regarding the three items of subsidiary legislation, i.e. the United
Nations Sanctions (Yemen) Regulation 2015 (L.N. 166), the United
Nations Sanctions (Libya) Regulation 2011 (Amendment) Regulation
2015 (L.N. 167) and the United Nations Sanctions (Cote d'lvoire)
Regulation 2015 (L.N. 168) which were made under the United Nations
Sanctions Ordinance (Cap. 537) and not required to be tabled in Council,
Members agreed that these three items of subsidiary legislation be
referred to the Subcommittee to Examine the Implementation in Hong
Kong of Resolutions of the United Nations Security Council in relation to
Sanctions as they came within the Subcommittee's terms of reference.

17.  Mr Dennis KWOK considered it necessary to form a subcommittee
to study the Trainee Solicitors (Amendment) Rules 2015 (L.N. 174) in
detail. Members agreed. Mr Dennis KWOK agreed to join the
proposed subcommittee.

18. Mr Albert HO considered it necessary to form a subcommittee to
study the Rules of the High Court (Amendment) (No. 3) Rules 2015 (L.N.
175) and the Rules of the District Court (Amendment) Rules 2015 (L.N.
176) in detail. Members agreed. Mr Albert HO and Mr Dennis
KWOK agreed to join the proposed subcommittee.

19. Regarding the Consular Relations (Additional Privileges and
Immunities) (Cambodia) Order (L.N. 177) and the Consular Relations
(Additional Privileges and Immunities) (Philippines) Order (L.N. 180),
Mr James TO enquired the extent to which the additional privileges and
immunities accorded to a consular post of the Kingdom of Cambodia and
of the Republic of the Philippines, or to persons connected with the
consular post, or to both, as specified in the respective order, were
different from the privileges and immunities accorded to consular posts of
other countries. LA said that the Consular Relations Ordinance (Cap.
557) made provisions for the implementation in Hong Kong of certain
provisions of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations and of other
agreements concerning consular relations to which the Government of the
People's Republic of China was a party and which were applied to Hong
Kong by the Central People's Government. Under section 4(1) of the




Action

-7-

Ordinance, the Chief Executive ("CE") in Council might, by order in the
Gazette, declare and specify additional privileges and immunities
accorded to a State under an international agreement. LSD had not
compared in detail the privileges and immunities accorded to consular
posts of various countries in Hong Kong. Mr TO considered it
necessary to form a subcommittee to study the two Orders in detail.
Members agreed. Mr James TO agreed to join the proposed
subcommittee.

20.  Members did not raise any question on the other 24 items of
subsidiary legislation.

21. The Chairman reminded Members that the deadline for amending
the 25 items of subsidiary legislation which had been tabled in Council on
8 July 2015 was the Council meeting of 28 October 2015, or that of 18
November 2015 if extended by a resolution of the Council; and the
deadline for amending the 20 items of subsidiary legislation which would
be tabled in Council on 14 October 2015 was the Council meeting of 11
November 2015, or that of 2 December 2015 if extended by a resolution
of the Council.

Legal Service Division report on subsidiary legislation gazetted on
2 October 2015
(LC Paper No. LS84/14-15)

22. At the invitation of the Chairman, LA briefed Members on the
LSD report on the eight items of subsidiary legislation gazetted on
2 October 2015 (i.e. L.N. 183 to L.N. 190) which would be tabled in
Council on 14 October 2015.

23. As regards the six Orders made under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112) to give effect to the agreements on information
exchange relating to tax matters (L.N. 183 to L.N. 188), Mr James TO
considered it necessary to form a subcommittee to study them in detail.
Members agreed. Mr James TO and Mr Kenneth LEUNG agreed to
join the proposed subcommittee.

24. Mr_SIN Chung-kai considered it necessary to form a
subcommittee to study the Specification of Arrangements (The Mainland
of China) (Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income) (Fourth Protocol) Order (L.N.
189) in detail. Members agreed. Mr James TO and Mr SIN
Chung-kai agreed to join the proposed subcommittee.




Action

VI.

-8-

25.  Members did not raise any question on the remaining item of
subsidiary legislation (i.e. L.N. 190).

26.  The Chairman reminded Members that the deadline for amending
these eight items of subsidiary legislation which would be tabled in
Council on 14 October 2015 was the Council meeting of 11 November
2015, or that of 2 December 2015 if extended by a resolution of the
Council.

Business for the Council meeting of 14 October 2015

Meeting arrangement for the Council meeting of 14 October 2015

27. The Chairman informed Members that the Council meeting of
14 October 2015 would be suspended at around 8:00 pm on Wednesday,
14 October. Given that the first meetings of Panels would be held on
Thursday, 15 October to elect the Panel Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen
for the 2015-2016 session, the Council meeting would resume at 9:00 am
on Friday, 16 October and if the President was of the opinion that the
proceedings on the two motions under the Legislative Council (Powers
and Privileges) Ordinance (Cap. 382) ("the P&P Ordinance") would
unlikely be finished by around 2:00 pm, he would adjourn the Council at
around 1:00 pm as the meetings of the House Committee (*HC") and FC
had been scheduled for that afternoon.

28. Responding to Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung, the Chairman said that
since no Council meeting would be held on 21 October 2015 which was
a public holiday, if the Council could not finish dealing with the business
by 1:00 pm on 16 October 2015, the unfinished items would be carried
over to the following Council meeting scheduled for 28 October 2015.

Report No. 1/15-16 of the House Committee on Consideration of
Subsidiary L egislation and Other Instruments

29. The Chairman said that the Report covered six items of subsidiary
legislation, the period for amendment of which would expire at the
Council meeting of 14 October 2015.

30. The Chairman further said that as Dr Helena WONG, member of
the Subcommittee on Three Regulations Relating to Control Regime for
the Import of Eggs had indicated her intention to speak on these three
Regulations, the Chairman of HC would move a motion to take note of
the Report in relation to the three Regulations at the Council meeting.




Action

VII.

-9-

(@) Questions
(LC Paper No. CB(3)13/15-16)

31. The Chairman said that 22 questions (six oral and 16 written) had
been scheduled for the meeting.

(b) Bill - First Reading and moving of Second Reading

32. The Chairman said that the Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) (Amendment) Bill 2015 would be presented to
the Council on 14 October 2015.

(c) Government motions

33. The Chairman said that no notice had been received yet.

(d) Members' motions

(1)  Motion under the Legislative Council (Powers and
Privileges) Ordinance to be moved by Hon Gary FAN
(LC Paper No. CB(3)11/15-16)

(i)  Motion under the Legislative Council (Powers and
Privileges) Ordinance to be moved by Hon Cyd HO
(LC Paper No. CB(3)11/15-16)

(ili) Motion on *'Seizing the opportunities brought about by
‘One Belt One Road" and seeking new directions for Hong
Kong's economy"* to be moved by Hon Martin LIAO
(LC Paper No. CB(3)9/15-16)

(iv) Motion on "Legislating for safety of drinking water™ to
be moved by Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki
(LC Paper No. CB(3)8/15-16)

34.  Members noted that debates on the above four Members' motions
would be held at the meeting.
The Chief Executive’s Question and Answer Session on 22 October

2015

35. The Chairman said that CE's Question and Answer Session would
be held from 9:30 am to 11:00 am.




Action

-10 -

VIIl. Reports of Bills Committees and subcommittees

(@) Report of the Bills Committee on Peak Tramway (Amendment)
Bill 2015
(LC Paper No. CB(4)1506/14-15)

36. Mr Jeffrey LAM, Chairman of the Bills Committee, briefed
Members on the deliberations of the Bills Committee as detailed in its
report. Members noted that the Bills Committee had raised no objection
to the Committee stage amendments (*"CSAs") proposed to be moved by
the Administration to the Bill. The Bills Committee supported the
resumption of the Second Reading debate on the Bill at the Council
meeting of 28 October 2015, subject to the moving of the proposed CSAs
by the Administration. Members also noted that Mr Tony TSE had
indicated his intention to consider moving CSA(S) to the Bill.

37. The Chairman reminded Members that the deadline for giving
notice of CSAs, if any, proposed to be moved to the above Bill would be
Saturday, 17 October 2015.

(b) Report of the Subcommittee on Foreign Lawyers Practice
(Amendment) Rules 2015, Solicitors' Practice (Amendment)
Rules 2015 and Limited Liability Partnerships (Top-up
Insurance) Rules
(LC Paper No. CB(4)1403/14-15)

38. Mr_ Dennis KWOK, Chairman of the Subcommittee, briefed
Members on the deliberations of the Subcommittee as detailed in its
report. Members noted that the Subcommittee did not object to the three
items of subsidiary legislation, which would come into operation on the
day on which the Legal Practitioners (Amendment) Ordinance 2012 came
into operation.

(¢) Report of the Subcommittee on Three Regulations Relating to
Control Regime for the Import of Eqggs
(LC Paper No. CB(2)2123/14-15)

39. Mr Steven HO, Chairman of the Subcommittee, briefed Members
on the deliberations of the Subcommittee as detailed in its report.
Members noted that while a majority of members had no strong views
against the three items of subsidiary legislation, two members belonging
to the Liberal Party considered the making of these three items of
subsidiary legislation unnecessary. Members also noted that the
Administration and the Subcommittee had not proposed to move any
amendment to the three items of subsidiary legislation.




Action

IX.

-11 -

40. The Chairman reminded Members that the period for amending the
six items of subsidiary legislation studied by the above two
Subcommittees would expire at the Council meeting of 14 October 2015.

(d) Proposed extension of period of work of subcommittees on
policy issues
(LC Paper No. CB(2)2188/14-15)

41. The Chairman invited Members to consider the proposed extension
of period of work of seven subcommittees on policy issues as detailed in
paragraph 5 of the paper. He highlighted that pursuant to the broad
principles for activation, operation and extension of period of work of
subcommittees on policy issues agreed to be adopted by HC at its meeting
in November 2013, where a subcommittee considered it necessary to
extend the period of its work but there were subcommittees on the waiting
list awaiting activation, HC might, if considered appropriate, give
permission for the subcommittee to extend the period of its work for three
months in the first instance, after which it would, if necessary, be placed
on the waiting list for re-activation of work for the remainder of the
extension period it had sought.

42. Members noted that at present, there were three subcommittees on
the waiting list, and the Panel on Development had agreed in July 2015 in
principle for the appointment of a subcommittee under the Panel to study
issues relating to redevelopment of buildings developed under the Civil
Servants' Cooperative Building Society Scheme, which, if formed in end
October 2015, would be put on the waiting list. Members supported the
proposal that the seven subcommittees be given permission to extend the
period of their work for three months, after which they would, if
necessary, be placed on the waiting list for re-activation of work for the
remainder of the extension period they had sought.

Position on Bills Committees and subcommittees
(LC Paper No. CB(2)2189/14-15)

43. The Chairman said that as at 8 October 2015, there were 11 Bills
Committees (three of which would need to work beyond three months
since its commencement), seven subcommittees under HC and seven
subcommittees on policy issues under Panels in action. Three
subcommittees on policy issues were on the waiting list.




Action

XI.

-12 -

Procedure for nomination and election of Members of the Legislative
Council to serve on the Council of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and the Court of the University of Hong Kong

(LC Paper No. CB(2)2190/14-15)

44.  Members endorsed the proposed amendment to the procedure for
nomination and election of Members to serve on the Council of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Court of the University of
Hong Kong as set out in paragraph 5 of the paper. Members also agreed
that the nomination and election be held at the next House Committee
meeting on 16 October 2015.

Proposals to seek the Council's authorization for the appointment of
a select committee to inquire into lead in drinking water incidents
and related issues

(@) Proposal of Hon Gary FAN
(LC Paper No. CB(3)11/15-16)

(b) Proposal of 27 Members
(LC Paper No. CB(2)2021/14-15(02))
(LC Paper No. CB(3)11/15-16)

45, At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Gary FAN said that while
the Chief Secretary for Administration ("CS") claimed that the
Administration had adhered to three principles, viz. keeping information
open and transparent, adopting a people-oriented approach and carrying
out thorough investigations, in handling the incidents of lead in drinking
water, the Administration had not looked into the responsibility that
should be borne by individual government departments and contractors
involved in the incidents. He pointed out that at the special HC
meeting held on 1 September 2015, CS had clearly indicated that the
issues to be studied by the Commission of Inquiry into Excess Lead
Found in Drinking Water ("Col") appointed by CE in Council as stated
in its terms of reference did not include ascertaining who should be
responsible for the incidents.

46. Mr Gary FAN further said that as revealed in the report of the
Review Committee on Quality Assurance Issues Relating to Fresh Water
Supply of Public Housing Estates (“the Review Committee") of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority ("HA") on its interim findings, there
were as many as six occasions in the Government's quality control
mechanism in relation to the fresh water supply system of public rental




Action

-13 -

housing ("PRH") estates where actions could have been taken by the
relevant government departments to prevent the occurrence of lead in
drinking water incidents. However, CS had, at the special HC meeting
on 8 October 2015, made the remark that the occurrence of the incidents
was mainly due to the inadequacies of the existing quality control
mechanism in relation to the fresh water supply system of PRH estates.
Mr FAN expected that Col would, as in the case of the independent
expert panel established by the Administration to review the
implementation and monitoring mechanism of the Hong Kong section of
the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link project ("the
XRL project”), be unable to hold the relevant parties responsible. He
had therefore proposed the moving of a motion under the P&P
Ordinance to seek the Council's authorization for the appointment of a
select committee to conduct a full inquiry into the matter.

47. At the invitation of the Chairman, Ms Cyd HO said that as Mr
Ronny TONG had vacated his office as Legislative Council ("LegCo")
Member, she hoped that HC would support the proposal, which now
represented the position of 26 incumbent Members, for the Chairman of
HC to move the motion proposed by her in Council to seek the Council's
authorization for the appointment of a select committee to inquire into
the matter. This, she believed, would show clearly to the public that
Members belonging to different political groups were gravely concerned
about the lead in drinking water incidents.

48.  Referring to the account given by CS at the special HC meeting on
8 October 2015, Ms Cyd HO said that the 26 Members considered it
unacceptable that CS had, before the ongoing investigations/reviews had
been completed, come to the view that no public officer should be held
responsible for the incidents of lead in drinking water. Even if the
occurrence of the incidents was due to inadequacies of the existing
quality control mechanism in relation to the fresh water supply system of
PRH estates, those who were responsible for formulating the mechanism
should be held responsible for the matter. While a proposal had been
put forth by Mr Gary FAN in July 2015 to seek the Council's
authorization for the appointment of a select committee to inquire into
the incidents of lead in drinking water in PRH estates, her proposed
motion had been drawn up to widen the scope of investigation to cover
both public and private buildings as it was subsequently revealed that
excess lead was also found in drinking water samples taken from private
residential buildings, schools and hospitals. Ms HO appealed to
Members belonging to different political groups to duly discharge their
monitoring role and support the appointment of a select committee by
LegCo to inquire into the cause of excess lead in drinking water for the
benefit of the community.




Action

-14 -

49. Dr Helena WONG expressed support for the appointment of a
select committee to conduct a comprehensive inquiry into lead in
drinking water incidents and related issues. She pointed out that the
issues to be studied by Col, the Review Committee and the Task Force
led by the Water Supplies Department ("WSD") did not include
ascertaining the responsibilities of the respective government officials,
contractors and licensed plumbers involved in the matter, nor had these
committees been empowered to ascertain whether any person/party was
at fault. She opined that while leaded solder joints were the source of
excess lead in drinking water in the PRH estates concerned, the
investigations and reviews being conducted should seek to find out not
only the source of excess lead, but also, and more importantly, the cause.
She therefore considered it necessary for Members to invoke the powers
under the P&P Ordinance to find out the truth about the matter, so as to
facilitate the taking of appropriate disciplinary/regulatory actions against
the persons/parties who were found responsible for the incidents, to plug
the loopholes in the existing monitoring and regulatory mechanism in
respect of drinking water supply in Hong Kong, and to better ensure the
safety of drinking water.

50. Mr James TO said that he noted that Mr Gary FAN and Ms Cyd
HO had given notices to respectively move a motion in Council to seek
the Council’'s authorization for the appointment of a select committee to
inquire into lead in drinking water incidents and related issues. Given
that the President had ruled that the contents of the motion proposed by
Mr Gary FAN and that proposed by Ms Cyd HO on behalf of 26
Members were substantially the same, and Mr FAN was also among the
26 Members, he hoped that Mr FAN would consider withdrawing his
proposed motion to be moved in Council, which, in his view, would be
more proper from the procedural point of view.

51. Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung said that unlike Col and the Review
Committee which were bound to study those issues within their terms of
reference, the proposed select committee with the powers under the P&P
Ordinance, if appointed, could draw up the scope of the inquiry to be
conducted. Given that CS had indicated before the completion of the
relevant investigations/reviews that no public officer should be held
responsible for the incidents of lead in drinking water, he considered that
all Members should support invoking the powers under the P&P
Ordinance to conduct an inquiry into the matter.

52. Mr Alan LEONG expressed support for the two proposals for the
appointment of a select committee to exercise the powers under the P&P
Ordinance to inquire into lead in drinking water incidents and related



Action

- 15 -

issues. He pointed out that the major difference between the proposed
inquiry to be conducted by the select committee and the
investigations/reviews being conducted respectively by Col, the Review
Committee and the Task Force led by WSD was that while the three
ongoing investigations/reviews would not look into the criminal and/or
civil liabilities of individual parties involved in the incidents, the
proposed inquiry would seek to, among others, ascertain the respective
responsibility of the parties involved in the matter.

53. The Chairman reminded Members that Mr Gary FAN and Ms Cyd
HO had already given notices to respectively move a motion under the
P&P Ordinance at the Council meeting of 14 October 2015 to seek the
Council's authorization for the appointment of a select committee to
inquire into the lead in drinking water incidents and related issues. He
clarified that the issue for consideration by HC was whether the
Chairman of HC should, on behalf of Members, move the motions
proposed respectively by Mr Gary FAN or Ms Cyd HO in Council.

54.  Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok declared that he was a member of the Review
Committee. He informed Members that the work of the Review
Committee included reviewing comprehensively the present
arrangements for quality control and monitoring in relation to the
installation of fresh water supply systems in PRH estates and identifying
areas for improvement. The Review Committee had submitted to HA a
report on its interim findings and recommendations on the measures that
should be put in place immediately by HA to prevent the recurrence of
similar incidents. He further pointed out that the preliminary findings
of the Task Force led by WSD, which were the outcome of numerous
scientific tests and analyses, had clearly revealed the cause of excess
lead in drinking water in the PRH estates concerned. He added that as
Col would soon commence hearing, it was premature to conclude that
Col would not be able to carry out its work effectively. He therefore
did not support invoking the powers under the P&P Ordinance to initiate
an inquiry into the matter at the present stage. In his view, it was more
appropriate to consider the need for LegCo to conduct the proposed
inquiry at least after the initial findings of Col were available.

55. Mr_Frederick FUNG said that it was unacceptable for CS to
merely attribute the problems to inadequate awareness among the
relevant government departments about the risk of lead in water and
come to a conclusion that no public officer should be held responsible
for the matter. In his view, inadequate awareness should not be used by
the relevant government departments as an excuse for shirking their
responsibilities, and they were clearly at fault for not introducing checks
of whether the solder joints used for PRH estates contained lead even




Action

-16 -

though it was specified in the relevant contracts that the solder joints
used should be lead-free. Given the above considerations, he supported
invoking the powers under the P&P Ordinance to conduct an inquiry into
the matter and also the proposal for the Chairman of HC to move the
proposed motion on behalf of Members, which would reflect Members'
consensual stance on the matter.

56. Ms Emily LAU considered that if the motion to seek the Council's
authorization for the appointment of a select committee to inquire into
lead in drinking water incidents and related issues was to be moved by
the Chairman of HC, it would convey to the community a clear message
that LegCo Members were greatly concerned about and had a consensual
view on the matter. She hoped that Members would support the
proposal for the Chairman of HC to move the relevant motion in Council
which, in her view, would stand a better chance of being carried.

57.  Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung said that the Administration was trying to
play down the problem of lead in drinking water by claiming that there
was inadequate awareness among the relevant government departments
about the risk of lead in water. Given that Col, the Review Committee
and the Task Force led by WSD would not look into the responsibility of
individual parties involved in the recent incidents of lead in drinking
water, he considered it necessary for LegCo to conduct an inquiry into
the matter to find out the truth. He also shared the view of Ms Emily
LAU that it would be more appropriate for the Chairman of HC to move
a motion in Council to seek the Council's authorization for the
appointment of a select committee to inquire into the matter, which
would not only indicate LegCo's consensual view but also convey to the
community an important message that LegCo attached great importance
to the matter.

58. Mr_TAM Yiu-chung said that Members belonging to the
Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong
("DAB") were greatly concerned about the recent incidents of lead in
drinking water and had taken various follow-up actions such as
arranging for blood lead tests and water sampling tests as well as urging
the Administration to expedite its work in these areas. However, as Col
was just about to commence hearing, and the investigation and review
undertaken respectively by the Task Force led by WSD and the Review
Committee were still in progress, Members belonging to DAB
considered it not necessary to invoke the powers under the P&P
Ordinance to inquire into the matter at the present stage. It would be
more appropriate to consider the need to do so after the ongoing inquiry,
investigation and review had been completed and the relevant reports
became available. Furthermore, given that Mr Gary FAN and Ms Cyd




Action

-17 -

HO had already given notices to respectively move their proposed
motions at the Council meeting of 14 October 2015, Mr TAM considered
it not necessary for the Chairman of HC to move the motions proposed
respectively by Mr FAN or Ms HO in Council.

59. Mr_Albert CHAN said that LegCo had the responsibility to
monitor the work of the Executive Authorities and conduct inquiries into
any acts of misconduct on their part in an open and transparent manner.
He considered it hypocritical of Members belonging to the
pro-establishment camp to criticize the Administration over its handling
of the incidents of lead in drinking water in districts on the one hand but
oppose the proposal to seek the Council's authorization for the
appointment of a select committee to investigate the matter on the other
hand. He stressed that LegCo was duty bound to exercise its powers to
Initiate an inquiry to find out the truth about the matter.

60. In response to Mr James TO's suggestion in paragraph 50 above,
Mr Gary FAN said that he would not withdraw his proposed motion to
be moved at the Council meeting of 14 October 2015.

61. Ms Cyd HO said that she did not realize until around 30 minutes
before the deadline for giving notice to move motions at the Council
meeting of 14 October 2015 that Mr Gary FAN had revised his proposed
motion and the wording of his revised motion was very similar to that of
her proposed motion. Given the imminent deadline, she had proceeded
to give notice to move her proposed motion which was agreed upon by
26 Members.

62. The Chairman first put to vote the proposal for the Chairman of
HC to move the motion proposed by Mr Gary FAN in Council to seek
the Council's authorization for the appointment of a select committee to
inquire into lead in drinking water incidents and related issues.
Mr Gary FAN requested a division.

The following Members voted in favour of the proposal:

Mr Frederick FUNG, Prof Joseph LEE, Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung, Mr
Albert CHAN, Mr WONG Yuk-man, Mr Gary FAN and Mr CHAN
Chi-chuen.

(7 Members)



Action

-18 -

The following Members voted against the proposal:

Mr CHAN Kam-lam, Mr TAM Yiu-chung, Mr Abraham SHEK, Mr
Tommy CHEUNG, Mr Vincent FANG, Mr WONG Kwok-hing, Mr
Jeffrey LAM, Mr WONG Ting-kwong, Ms Starry LEE, Dr LAM Tai-fai,
Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Mr CHAN Kin-por, Mr WONG Kwok-kin, Mr IP
Kwok-him, Mrs Regina IP, Mr Paul TSE, Mr Michael TIEN, Mr James
TIEN, Mr NG Leung-sing, Mr Steven HO, Mr YIU Si-wing, Mr MA
Fung-kwok, Mr CHAN Han-pan, Miss CHAN Yuen-han, Mr LEUNG
Che-cheung, Miss Alice MAK, Mr KWOK Wai-keung, Mr Christopher
CHEUNG, Dr Elizabeth QUAT, Mr POON Siu-ping, Mr TANG Ka-piu,
Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok, Mr CHUNG Kwok-pan, Mr Christopher CHUNG
and Mr Tony TSE.

(35 Members)

The following Members abstained from voting:

Mr Albert HO, Mr James TO, Ms Emily LAU, Ms Cyd HO, Mr
CHEUNG Kwok-che, Mr Alan LEONG, Ms Claudia MO, Mr WU
Chi-wai, Mr Charles MOK, Dr Kenneth CHAN, Mr Kenneth LEUNG,
Dr KWOK Ka-ki, Mr Dennis KWOK, Mr SIN Chung-kai, Dr Helena
WONG and Mr IP Kin-yuen.

(16 Members)

63. The Chairman declared that seven Members voted for and 35
Members voted against the proposal, and 16 Members abstained from
voting. The Chairman declared that the proposal was not supported.

64. The Chairman proposed that the meeting would proceed to vote
immediately on the other proposal without the ringing of the five-minute
voting bell if a division was claimed. Members agreed.

65. The Chairman then put to vote the proposal for the Chairman of
HC to move the motion proposed by Ms Cyd HO in Council to seek the
Council's authorization for the appointment of a select committee to
inquire into lead in drinking water incidents and related issues. Ms Cyd
HO requested a division.

The following Members voted in favour of the proposal:

Mr Albert HO, Mr James TO, Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung, Ms Emily LAU,
Mr Frederick FUNG, Prof Joseph LEE, Ms Cyd HO, Mr CHEUNG
Kwok-che, Mr Alan LEONG, Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung, Mr Albert
CHAN, Mr WONG Yuk-man, Ms Claudia MO, Mr WU Chi-wai, Mr
Gary FAN, Mr Charles MOK, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen, Dr Kenneth CHAN,



Action

XII.

-19 -

Mr Kenneth LEUNG, Dr KWOK Ka-ki, Mr Dennis KWOK, Mr SIN
Chung-kai, Dr Helena WONG and Mr IP Kin-yuen.
(24 Members)

The following Members voted against the proposal:

Mr CHAN Kam-lam, Mr TAM Yiu-chung, Mr Abraham SHEK, Mr
Tommy CHEUNG, Mr Vincent FANG, Mr WONG Kwok-hing, Mr
Jeffrey LAM, Mr WONG Ting-kwong, Ms Starry LEE, Dr LAM Tai-fai,
Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Mr CHAN Kin-por, Mr WONG Kwok-kin, Mr IP
Kwok-him, Mrs Regina IP, Mr Paul TSE, Mr Michael TIEN, Mr James
TIEN, Mr NG Leung-sing, Mr Steven HO, Mr YIU Si-wing, Mr MA
Fung-kwok, Mr CHAN Han-pan, Miss CHAN Yuen-han, Mr LEUNG
Che-cheung, Miss Alice MAK, Mr KWOK Wai-keung, Mr Christopher
CHEUNG, Dr Elizabeth QUAT, Mr POON Siu-ping, Mr TANG Ka-piu,
Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok, Mr CHUNG Kwok-pan, Mr Christopher CHUNG
and Mr Tony TSE.

(35 Members)

66. The Chairman declared that 24 Members voted for and 35
Members voted against the proposal, and no Member abstained from
voting. The Chairman declared that the proposal was not supported.

Proposal of Hon Gary FAN to seek the House Committee's agreement
for asking an urgent oral question at the Council meeting of
14 October 2015 on issues relating to the Hong Kong section of the
Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link project

(LC Paper No. CB(2)2173/14-15(01))

67. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Gary FAN said that the
delay and cost overrun of the XRL project had exposed the inability of
the MTR Corporation Limited (“MTRCL") to take forward the
construction works as scheduled and the failure of the Government to
closely monitor MTRCL's implementation of the XRL project. It had
also aroused public concern as to whether the Government and MTRCL
had deliberately covered up the delay and the financial situation of the
project. He pointed out that according to the quarterly report on the
progress update and financial situation of the XRL project for the period
ending 30 June 2015 provided by the Transport and Housing Bureau, the
cumulative expenditure of the XRL project for awarded contracts and
substantiated claims amounted to $46.8 billion and $20.8 billion
respectively, exceeding the budget of $55 billion approved by FC in
2010. In view of the escalating cost of the XRL project and given that
its total expenditure could not exceed the amount approved by FC, he
appealed to Members to support his proposal.




Action

-20 -

68. Mr Gary FAN further said that he had moved a motion under the
P&P Ordinance in Council in June 2014 to seek the Council's
authorization for the appointment of a select committee to exercise the
powers of the P&P Ordinance to inquire into the delay of the XRL project
but Members belonging to the pro-establishment camp did not support the
motion. Given the significant public interest involved, LegCo was duty
bound to take the -earliest possible opportunity to seek the
Administration's response to relevant issues.

69. Mr CHAN Han-pan said that while the delay and cost overrun of
the XRL project were important issues, there was no urgency in asking
the question proposed by Mr Gary FAN. He said that the Subcommittee
on Matters Relating to Railways was liaising with the Administration to
arrange a meeting to follow up the matter and the Select Committee to
Inquire into the Background of and Reasons for the Delay of the
Construction of the Hong Kong section of the
Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link ("the Select
Committee") was established to inquire into the background of and
reasons for the project delay and related issues, including the performance
and accountability of the Government and MTRCL relating to the project
delay.

70. Ms Claudia MO said that the Government and MTRCL were
evading their responsibility for the serious cost overrun of the XRL
project. She expressed support for Mr FAN's proposal given that there
was an urgent need to seek the Government's explanation for the ever
increasing cost of the project.  Ms MO said that she was a member of
the Select Committee. In her view, without being authorized to exercise
the powers under the P&P Ordinance, the Select Committee was not able
to obtain key information essential for the effective conduct of the
inquiry.

71. Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung said that he did not agree to the view
expressed by Mr CHAN Han-pan that there was no urgency in asking the
proposed question raised by Mr Gary FAN. Given that Members were
vested with the responsibility of scrutinizing public expenditure and
closely monitoring the progress of related works, Mr FAN's proposal of
asking an urgent question on the delay and cost overrun of the XRL
project at the Council meeting of 14 October 2015 should be supported.

72.  Mr_Alan LEONG expressed support for Mr FAN's proposal to
address public concerns on the cost overrun of the XRL project. He said
that LegCo had the constitutional duty to monitor the public expenditure
and the Government's performance. Mr LEONG further pointed out that
there would be irreversible consequences if the question was not raised at




Action

-21 -

the Council meeting of 14 October 2015 since the problem of cost
overrun in relation to the outstanding claims with the contractors
concerned might be further aggravated.

73. Ms Cyd HO shared the view that there would be irreversible
consequences if the urgent oral question proposed by Mr FAN could not
be raised at the Council meeting of 14 October 2015. She said that she
had also given notice for asking a question on the same subject but the
earliest opportunity for asking the question would be a Council meeting in
mid November 2015.

74. Mr _Gary FAN stressed that since the Administration had not
proposed measures to resolve the cost overrun problem and provided
explanation on the accountability of the Government/MTRCL since the
announcement of the cost overrun and project delay in April 2014, and the
delay of the commissioning of XRL would have significant adverse
Impacts on the economic benefits of Hong Kong, there was an urgent
need to ask his proposed question at the Council meeting of 14 October
2015.

75.  The Chairman put to vote the proposal of Mr Gary FAN to seek the
House Committee's agreement for him to ask an urgent oral question at
the Council meeting of 14 October 2015 on issues relating to the Hong
Kong section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link
project. Mr Gary FAN requested a division.

The following Members voted in favour of the proposal:

Mr Albert HO, Mr James TO, Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung, Ms Emily LAU,
Mr Frederick FUNG, Prof Joseph LEE, Ms Cyd HO, Mr CHEUNG
Kwok-che, Mr Alan LEONG, Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung, Mr Albert CHAN,
Ms Claudia MO, Mr Michael TIEN, Mr WU Chi-wai, Mr Gary FAN, Mr
Charles MOK, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen, Dr Kenneth CHAN, Mr Kenneth
LEUNG, Dr KWOK Ka-ki, Mr Dennis KWOK, Mr SIN Chung-kai and
Mr IP Kin-yuen.

(23 Members)

The following Members voted against the proposal:

Mr CHAN Kam-lam, Mr TAM Yiu-chung, Mr Tommy CHEUNG, Mr
Vincent FANG, Mr WONG Kwok-hing, Mr Jeffrey LAM, Mr WONG
Ting-kwong, Ms Starry LEE, Dr LAM Tai-fai, Mr CHAN Hak-kan, Mr
CHAN Kin-por, Mr WONG Kwok-kin, Mr IP Kwok-him, Mrs Regina IP,
Mr Paul TSE, Mr James TIEN, Mr NG Leung-sing, Mr Steven HO, Mr
YIU Si-wing, Mr MA Fung-kwok, Mr CHAN Han-pan, Miss CHAN



Action

XIHI.

-22 -

Yuen-han, Mr LEUNG Che-cheung, Miss Alice MAK, Mr KWOK
Wai-keung, Mr Christopher CHEUNG, Dr Elizabeth QUAT, Mr POON
Siu-ping, Mr TANG Ka-piu, Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok, Mr CHUNG Kwok-pan
and Mr Christopher CHUNG.

(32 Members)

The following Member abstained from voting:

Mr Tony TSE
(1 Member)

76. The Chairman declared that 23 Members voted for and 32
Members voted against the proposal and one Member abstained from
voting. The Chairman declared that the proposal was not supported.

Election of the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the House
Committee for the 2015-2016 session

Election of Chairman

77. The Chairman, called for nominations for the chairmanship of HC
for the 2015-2016 session. Mr Andrew LEUNG was nominated by
Ir Dr LO Wai-kwok and the nomination was seconded by Mr IP
Kwok-him. Mr Andrew LEUNG accepted the nomination.

78.  As the Chairman was nominated, and given that the resignation of
Mr Ronny TONG, the former Deputy Chairman, had taken effect on 1
October 2015, Mr_Albert HO, the Member present who had the highest
precedence, took over from the Chairman to preside over the election.
He invited other nominations for the chairmanship. Mr SIN Chung-kai
was nominated by Ms Emily LAU and the nomination was seconded by
Mr Charles MOK. Mr SIN Chung-kai accepted the nomination. No
further valid nominations were made.

79. Ms Emily LAU suggested that the two candidates be given time to
present their election platforms and answer questions from Members.

80. At the suggestion of the presiding Member, Members agreed that
each candidate would be given one minute to present their election
platform, to be followed by questions from Members, and two minutes
would be allowed for each question and the replies from the two
candidates. Members also agreed that in line with the usual practice, the
election forum would be recorded in verbatim.



Action

XIV.

-23 -

81. Mr Andrew LEUNG and Mr SIN Chung-kai made their respective
presentations. Mr_Albert HO then invited questions from Members.
Mr Andrew LEUNG and Mr SIN Chung-kai responded to questions put
forward by Ms Emily LAU, Mr Alan LEONG, Ms Cyd HO, Ms Claudia
MO, Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung and Mr LEUNG Yiu-chung. (Verbatim
transcript of the presentation of platforms and answering of questions is in
the Appendix.)

82.  Mr Albert HO announced a vote by secret ballot. The result of the
vote was that 37 Members voted for Mr Andrew LEUNG and 23
Members voted for Mr SIN Chung-kai. Mr HO declared Mr Andrew
LEUNG elected as the Chairman of HC for the 2015-2016 session. Mr
Andrew LEUNG then took the chair.

Election of Deputy Chairman

83. The Chairman called for nominations for the deputy chairmanship
of HC for the 2015-2016 session. Mr MA Fung-kwok was nominated
by Dr LAM Tai-fai and the nomination was seconded by Ir Dr LO
Wai-kwok. Mr_ MA Fung-kwok accepted the nomination. The
Chairman called for other nominations.

84. Mr SIN Chung-kai was nominated by Ms Cyd HO and the
nomination was seconded by Mr Alan LEONG. Mr SIN Chung-kai
accepted the nomination.

85.  As there was more than one nomination, the Chairman announced a
vote by secret ballot. The result of the vote was that 32 Members voted
for Mr MA Fung-kwok, 27 Members voted for Mr SIN Chung-kai, and
one blank vote was cast. The Chairman declared Mr MA Fung-kwok
elected as the Deputy Chairman of HC for the 2015-2016 session.

Any other business

Up-to-date position on the signification of membership of Panels

86. The Chairman reminded Members that the deadline for
signification of membership of 18 Panels was 12:00 noon, Saturday,
10 October 2015.

87.  There being no other business, the meeting ended at 4:42 pm.

Council Business Division 2
Leqislative Council Secretariat

15 October 2015



B £%
Appendix

ARCES - MREZERV  KEEHMUREAGTRAEER -
HWHHE#HE — o8 KRECWHER > EE2RAHEEDN - (HA
REZRETERN > WAREANESHEEEREZE?RES -

REEREE - JKRAME -
AR CEE : ®RAME  AFESERERERN - BfEZERAER 2
EfmEzE - HE -

AIERCES : HE - WMREEHE > FEEE R HR
FFEME WEEERZVAUREEREHN  RERSUEERE
FEHE AR R #E - B2 EREE - A5 AT Fie
M - BAfEANCES — o - FRESZHEELHS -

REEBRE  RG EEF - FENHY L EGTEREHENE
WER - ERBEANGEHRR - Jorgii (REHRA) M
(ABSFHT) R ZEMRE RG22 EFUENER - 55| - &K
—HAFENRERENER - EERF R E - WIEZZER
EH BEREAETOBELEEER  BEFEMNABLZEEH
EE - IR B LR ERE S EHE S A A DUA e AE 2R
MzZH - g —uEE EEELCENREANGES » L
K BIAL e L R LR N E T -

fIg{CEE - WEEREARZE -

HEBRBER L - REBEEH - &
FREFEE TR FR 8k - jt%ﬁaj

BoE B o BEEE -

BEffEzE  EARAEZ (HEHRA) ERg#E - BEFANEGE
o EEFAGRE  KEEEEEDN - 2/ T oK g #
mBBRAER  EAEKE =S EANMYS - HEENE - A
RIENgEIREZERGSER > BrEEEFNIE &2
(EARE) By RMegES - BAERILEME - B o#
MR R BT RE - BILERF - MBS N EEEZER



i AR €K ELEGHTAES » e 2B A R EIKE 3
Ry ZEE s AR —IR > FT—IK" .

AERCES  HAEMGRERN » 55 ot W IRIT 5 WAL x5
FE o RRFMEH - HEESEW O #E  HERRKEG - FI2
VilE =R

EL B

28 EF -

fAR{ZE&EE 2 -

ELFEE  MAEW o # ZNEFES > BE - 0] 5 F
WAL e 2 A e ) We 2 3 [R] — (il fel RE - AR RS (L [81 3 2 AT DAY
g =2

AR{CES - Ll ERaDl - FIEWEE -

AEWEE - £F - REHREBEEE  REEFBXE R - it
Hor—HTEEEBUFER  HEXRMEZXANEGHEST - MAES
—WoENZEEER: "RRAEBER" - RE LA HBUT
ARZER - Eam R IRSCOR M2 R - 3 /IR E B 8 BT
il BREIKRKABRREERFER  HMENRE > 2570
AS oy — Bh g 2

HE  ARERFENRAEICE  EAMES - RAE - K
G FRREECTILEGRENER  KAXEIHHGH - "E
AN mERR Y IRE A SRt ie ? # # % -

R E : REZHEA -

REBEEHRE - BB - WEMLCARHA G SRR - AR
M ERENRSNLE  AEFREREEN (REHA) O
B - Rl Egak  S3MUEAEHA"ME "7 KKMET -
AL B CGREAAD) i mMEANgRESRERTRN



HERERERE R - GEFEH P E RS » el REE —
Bhoo DL EEHERE (FREHAA) M -

B RZRXEFIREERTREEEEEER ? KETE
ﬁ%’ﬁ%hﬂ R BRRHER®R  HWEMKHEARITH - &
rRIFRgHEETREZR - HoRME - WEFARGHHEEH
HERANTHES - IS KRET LR - RERE S EER 5
1y R SO o PR SRy AR 2 BUR R 2 B T fE
REEFRNG - EE R SRy ... B X & 7R H 2
WHFARGH » BHEXGMEI ...

AIR{CEE : 7 - ...

PEEHE . FREEORE LR RGE R R
T LA B 0 9

AR E : %

S
H
p=q1111

%8 -

7

RRGEHE - DH LT - ﬁrﬁ%?E’ﬁﬁ%%#ﬁ%%
W MABZEGERE - HEMANS S  ERANSEGHEL
—ERMEREN - HREEZZE %£f£ﬁ%h%i’ﬁ~5
REEExTE2RAEXEN  HELA-EEZERERFFRD -

R — (8 R AR A R R — B A - R FE AR A —
FEHE B MAMY G B T W E AL SR &
IR RSE A - B - R AR RE  BARE R
R fh1ESE B T & L IR 7

FHoEEREENMHE AR SN BLEZEG EFEEILEG
WERREEGAMWRET A ECERETH - 2F K
Ry AR i —HEE EH—FE g EREHEES
YA EE 2 %3 E -

AIER{CEE  REEZRE



REEHE ' T RBREENER - ERX BARFAHETD
[FE s - WA DURIMER - REEBI K - BEEEZRFANEG G
i EHEBTMRALER - MBS KRIOER - F59HITE
BN BB ebills » e —E AR DLEE - FERNGEE ... T
BE - AEELERE ! AL KREBE - E T M
fREXIE ~ #ioc » AR AT DL A RBESE - WIKEDV A 1717 -

R CEE : (WHHEHEEA -

MSMAE : AL - BN RESHATHEMLIET

REBEHE BT AT EHERY

AFEWZEES : MERARHMRAFLEERD > F2RAHERNES
AN FERLOM G T ESE -

 HRAMIRE (REFEHA) F45Q2) T
e BT Ry M N A G IR  EE ] Dlan 2 R
BEEBE-FZ  WEREALAT= N
B [H]

HEHREEZEE
FERETTHYMERD - B2 E
B L RIRFE RS - B

R EEABHEEA EER PRI Ry IRE [ 21 1+ 577§ 58 i 38

& FilgHHEEBERENEN - FEARF O HE

WHHESUEEA T DI  HREEFEEE =B E
REEZHAEAEEELERN MEWMEEEMNEER » RREE
HEFASQ)IRER S -

HERFBREEZHEE LA RUAR A G RN REE T EE
M- S ZE A EASQEERERES - (KA A A DUfEE £
Hi K RE WE 2

REBEHE  ERIEWZ T WAL RE R R BB M E A
HA45(2) 6k - HMRPrat B9 - B BB Y -

AFEMES MR EEFAH - NEMEHSF RS REERRE
HAEE R H R -



REERE  AMEEXFIR  EFEEEN (7 %ﬁ%)M’

ff—ERES K EREHKN - ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’mﬁﬁﬁ
Ak B EER (REHRN) K- ERERE > —EF. ...
MFMES - BEEMEZ ET Ry A Bhg 2

REEHE  HROEESLS  BHEENEHEENR T (KE
R EFIE

MERZEE - 245 H

B

REERE  HE A EHOIHBEHMEFNRENNHES
M - bl - WAEEE HEE SVl - RREMARFER - WEEX
At -

AFMES : kg - (MECHWERLI0ZH.....

CIRE-3 - =R S

AEWEES - ... frhfEZedeEg b EEgER T -

IR CHEE : BLTFE

%
il

ELAFER AT - "HE AR - BEEEET . 58 F Ay E
FMEREZREaH  REW WK REEH - HEREILH
RESZEE  BLeEBEMERERBILREE - BE AAMIE
M AR ESRFHE i%ﬁ&?%@ S HOE 8 T o frE] AN A DA
GRAG IR E" e > MEEE"?

AR{CESR WAL kE % 2
ELHF

28 EAZREE=E

W
i

()]



fI@CEE : REZHEE -

ELWREE  WIREEMH > T5F....

REBEHE  KECANGEE  RZHEF -ZEREHRAEH
AR EE EAEE— M ARE - R 2 EEZRENEENER
g - T (GREAAD) R -

H—EAGHEHE LEFgEREZEAN > i E — @
e REFEMEE - BTl ET*%%EE°

g8 : HiPfE=EEA -

ELWEE  EFE > REMEE - MmAgHeEsE T

lll

R

AIERCEE - IR RGE G M (R & BB fEE H EK 7

REEZERE K—ErTglEmnsE REEEASHEY &
INEFEAST » WEPA LI EHE o

R{CESE « HiPEEE -

EfERE g R EBRRKERER  EEMEEANE
H oo il M—EALGEMENREEN  EAFEHSZMHEE -

ELPEE A7 TEREBRMHE -

fAIg{-&E « &

=

B

i3

o

REHEEE - EF - WAL EEANGFR T - AR IE
SIABF - MR HILEREE » e "REHAER"EE ...



IERCEE - FHEREER > BAHERE -

REHES c KA EHMERZEHET > RERMERL THILR
e B HAEE TR BE - EBRIRERTEE o Ml
AR IR AR AR o IR A M REENE 7 OB EE L Ir BRI R EE "
N EBTE

fIR{CEE  (RE/KALIE 2

REGHE WA TH T -

R{CES - EXFHMERELRE - FAFE?

REMES - EEEE" RE"RE" "ER"NWER -

=

BhEZEES  REETEgN - BHEXE 228 - HE
KEEE HETERZHESGY g BEEKEIRED BIKEE
KRR R TEMBE MAEEZRMEEENEE - B
HAEIR -

i E AR HIIR AT B 5 KRAEE [ ATse N5 R a0 A] DLk & 07

B WERY TAER (% - 58 2 KB RY - A2 WA A3 09" — K
fT—IR" - EHHFENBUA R -

fAIR{CHEE

i
%ﬁb&

= o
=\

REBEHE AV HRBEMEEESRE - WAZESE - B
B WENAHEREREE - N8 EILEGN - EH
ERAELAPHF  EEKEEERZL -

fAIR{CEE & &k —EHMNE  REL

%ﬁ!&
il

~



REBRE  EF WS ELFHREHREEZEE 46K
BE . RERESHA—E2REFHE B SEAMEIIE
bt WAIRE R A M FAE - BRI 225k B [ E ) 55 B ik & By
At AR A LR EEREL - (REPHEEMEESE - H3EFER
W METTIM S - IR 58 5 A0 {R) S 7 58 W 1 g 2

FELE REHCASEZEXFEANZ— WEEHE BHER
fRE « "R IR B WEEMRE" - FEERHED - (REHE
EE - Bl hRMEROLER AR 2 (R/EEHEE Mg &
e 2 fr/ERew FiE H g EA P E S HEE R ?

A TR B E R E G R (REYEIZE &R - thHRE
EEIFIEIR ? HREEMRE 7 REHN - G2Vl 1 o IR
B E B E - BN ER R N R mE R R
BV - MR ARE SRS - DA d & aE B g ?

PEEBE  REOAW - EEEROEIGH  REEG -
RBEINER AR BB R E®REEN . g AWM
1% BB 55 G+ R B B R EEEN NS 5 EE
ot 2 4 EF I -

B2 - IR — Sl - BIAINER - RE 1340k & A DLie i »
MARKERFANSL — o ERHE > TEERE+— ZAEATLUE
M BHRESHE N AEEEESBRER < FrlL o & P
wENE SN -

FTLL Ryl e S5 & LU B Al e 2 AR WE IR L H /A

o A el — B E R KA ERG & > HERGHEER
ATHY

AIRICEES - P P A 5 B2 B B AE 524 -



	cb2-12-e
	cb2-12-a-ec

